

# Student Council Approves Campus Center By-Laws

With one dissenting vote and little discussion, the by-laws for the Campus Center were hurriedly approved at the Student Council meeting Tuesday.

The by-laws that were debated in a long session of the Campus Center Planning Board last week, call for the election of the board president by the nine members. The board will be selected by the executive committee of Council, consisting of the president, vice-president, recording and corresponding secretaries and the treasurer, senior members of the Campus Center Board, and the director of the Center.

The Student Council will have three checks over the board, the power of appointment, a constitutional check and a budgetary check.

Council has the right to approve all amendments to the Center's bylaws and all budget allocations must be approved by Council each semester.

Each year the entire board and all other applicants will be reinterviewed and the new board will be compiled.

Argument was anticipated over the provision that provides that none of the profits made by the Center will revert back to Council, but no disagreement was raised.

LaBarbara Bowman, Albrightian representative gave the dissenting vote.

## BY-LAWS OF CAMPUS CENTER BOARD

### Article I. NAME

The name of this organization shall be the Albright College Campus Center Board.

### Article II. PURPOSE AND OBJECTIVES

#### Section 1.

The purpose of this organization is to provide a meaningful social and cultural life on the Albright College Campus, to promote the full integration of campus groups and the fullest use of the Campus Center's facilities by students, faculty, administration, trustees, and community.

#### Section 2.

The objectives of the Campus Center are to provide all-campus social and cultural activities, to coordinate other organizations' all-campus social and cultural activities, to organize and operate social and cultural activities of the Campus Center and to govern the use of its facilities.

### Article III. MEMBERSHIP

#### Section 1.

The Board shall consist of nine members which shall include at least two juniors, two sophomores, and one freshman. It shall be the responsibility of the Director of the Campus Center to insure that all major student viewpoints are included on the Board.

#### Section 2.

Nominations for membership on the Campus Center Board shall be made by the senior members of the Board, the Director of the Campus Center and the Executive Committee of Student Council during the Spring Semester of each year. Upon approval by the Student Council, these nominees shall be declared elected. This selection process shall be completed by no later than May 1 of each year.

### Article IV. OFFICERS

#### Section 1.

The officers of the Board shall consist of a President, a Secretary, and a Treasurer who are to be selected by a simple majority vote of the Campus Center Board.

#### Section 2.

The President shall preside at all meetings, shall appoint special committees, and perform such duties as are necessary for the efficiency of the Campus Center Board.

#### Section 3.

The Secretary shall keep records of all Board meetings, prepare an annual report on all-Campus Center Board activities, and perform such other duties as the office may require.

#### Section 4.

The Treasurer shall keep the financial records of the Board and be responsible for handling the financial transactions and monies as directed by the Board. He shall perform such other duties as pertain to his office.

### Article V. MEETINGS

#### Section 1.

Meetings of the Board may be convened by the Director of the Campus Center, President of the Board, or by a majority of the Board members.

#### Section 2.

A majority constitutes a quorum.

#### Section 3.

Decisions of the Board shall be made by a majority of the members of the Board.

#### Section 4.

Meetings will be open to non-members, except at the discretion of the Board.

### Article VI. COMMITTEES

Committee chairmen shall be members of the Board selected by the Director of the Campus Center and the officers. The standing committees shall be as follows:

1. Social
2. Recreation
3. Publicity
4. House (host and hostess)
5. Cultural
6. Special Events

(Continued on Page Two)

# The Albrightian

Serving Albright College Since 1879

VOL. LIX

READING, PENNSYLVANIA, APRIL 28, 1967

No. 22

## Student Attends N. Y. Peace March

By Nancee Kane, '68

The Peace March in New York City on April 15th was aptly named a "Spring Out" by its organizers. People came from as far West as Chicago, Illinois to demonstrate their conviction that the war in Vietnam should be ended and peace secured. About thirty-five Albright students were among the three hundred and fifty thousand people who were there. Since we did not march in the same contingent our experiences at the March were quite different.

Our group saw the actual beginning of the March. The Sioux Indians were the first group to start marching followed later by a truck load of children singing with Pete Seeger. Other Albrightians before reaching the UN were caught in the downpour which hit the city at 5:30.

The people in New York City that weekend were the most remarkable group I have ever seen: students, teenagers, middleclass homemakers, scholars and hippies. Although the news media concentrated as usual on the "way out dressers", most of the marchers were average people many of whom walked with their children or wheeled them in baby carriages.

The "Love" Jay Ressler spoke of in his article on the "Be In" is real. People were as free in giving daffodils, cigarettes and candy as they were with the conversation. Henry Kirkwood in talking of the March said that at one point a man left the line of march and later emerged from a candy store carrying a box of chocolates which was gratefully emptied by those around him.

Saturday afternoon was a time for meeting friends once at Albright and for laughing with people. While still in Sheep Meadow we heard a woman ask a young man for a copy of the newspaper he was selling. "That's five cents, ma'am," he said. "Five cents!" she exclaimed. "Yes, ma'am, five cents. We're not CIA backed," he quipped.

The UN Plaza was crowded when we arrived at 1:30, but as the afternoon wore on we knew the March would not end until dark. Between speakers it was announced, "There are people on the line of march and the park is still full!" During the entertainment staged before the speaking program I could see the platform if I jumped as high as I could. By the time Dr. Martin Luther King spoke it was impossible to see anything except the heads of those in front of me. A friend said he would lift me up if I wanted to see Dr. King. The only thing I could say as I stood head and shoulders above the

## Concert Success Boosts Student Council Budget

Big-name entertainment has finally been a success. The Magnificent Men Concert of Friday night grossed a profit of over \$123.00, Campus Center, president Don Yanich told Student Council at Tuesday's meeting.

The success boosted the budget of Student Council from a meager \$63.00 to \$1459.54, Council treasurer Craig Sergeant reported to the membership.

This is the first time since the idea of bringing big-name entertainment to campus was conceived that the program has shown a profit. The Council lost \$2800 in the fall concert, starring Chuck Berry and The Shirelles.

In other financial affairs Council approved its budget of \$7100 for next year and budgets for campus groups it funds. This amount will be split between the Council and the Campus Center.

The Council is keeping \$2000 and tentatively allocating \$1500 for the Center. The Center Board had turned in a budget request of over \$7000 but Sergeant said obviously this request could not be granted. Council also announced the bud-

et allocations for other campus groups that it must fund.

The combined Y's were given \$2,600, \$100 increase over last year's budget, the Agon, \$550, a \$50 increase, Domino Club, \$100, Cue \$9,000, and the Albrightian \$5,625.

A one dollar increase per student for Student Council was granted by the Treasurer's Office to facilitate the increased expenses incurred by the Campus Center.

Allocations for the Cue and Albrightian are computed strictly on a per-student basis and will vary with enrollment. The Cue receives \$8 per student and the newspaper \$5 per student.

These budget allocations will be adjusted once definite enrollment figures for the 1967-68 academic year are available, Sergeant explained.

## Convocation Changes Planned, Special Committee Formed

A new ad hoc committee for Convocation planning has been formed under the chairmanship of Dr. Robert E. McBride, academic dean of the college. The committee's main purpose is to formulate a new program for the convocations for the upcoming fall semester.

The present proposals call for a block of 20 programs for the coming fall where the student might choose 12 of the 20 to fulfill his required attendance at chapel. That is to say, an Albright student would not be required to attend all of the chapel programs with the exceptions of the three cuts, that is now allowed to him.

Most of the programs will be on the regular days that are currently observed; however, some sessions will be held at night, with an outside possibility in the future of weekend programs.

Other members of the committee are: Chaplain William R. Marlow; Mr. Harrie G. Burdan, in charge of publicity and arrangements; Mr. Louis F. Weisogel, in charge of attendance and student behavior.

Also: Mr. David L. Schwartz, Mr. Phillip Eylich, Dr. Ellery B. Haskell, Mr. Le Roy B. Hinkle, Mr. Harry Kousaros, Miss Janet Gehris, Dr. Edith B. Douds and Dr. Eugene H. Barth, all of whom are members of the Albright faculty.

masses of people was "Look at all the people."

This exclamation may sound trite in print but you weren't there, Baby.

Student members of the committee are: Rick Golber, 70; Jan Leader, 70; Susan Veghtet, 69, and Steve Sebkim, 68. Other students will be placed on the staff at a later date.

## IFC ELECTS NEW OFFICERS

Craig Sergeant, a junior member of Alpha Pi Omega fraternity, was elected President of Inter-Fraternity Council, Steve Regenstrief, out-going President, announced this week. The fraternities originally split their votes on different candidates but an APO-Kappa coalition finally decided the election.

Other elected officers are Peter Fasig, Kappa Upsilon Phi, Vice President; Richard Merk, Kappa, Treasurer, and Phil Sterner, APO, Secretary.

Applications are now being taken for Editorial Board and other administration positions on The Albrightian next year. Interested persons should submit their names and position desired to The Albrightian, Box 107; these may be dropped in the campus mail slot near the mail-room.



## EDITORIALS . . .

### NEW CONVOCATIONS

Happiness is knowing that the chapel programs are going to be changed next year. Under the new system suggested by Dean Robert McBride, academic dean and Chaplain William Marlow students will no longer be herded into the chapel every Tuesday and Thursday morning, usually against their will. The new plan calls for the convocation programs to be held at different times during the week and the student is given a freer choice in the ones he wishes to attend. In addition the number of convocations held a semester has been reduced from thirty to twenty-two.

However, this change solves only half the problem of the convocation programs, the other half is the speakers. We cannot expect to have well-known "speakers" every time a convocation is held but we can expect to have at least three times out of the semester a speaker of national renown, a person whose name is recognized by any well-versed college student.

A faculty-student committee has been established to plan the program for the upcoming year. A meeting of this group was held this week and the students vocally expressed the general student dissatisfaction with the lack of "big names" among the list of convocation speakers.

A lot of criticism should be solved by the change in the scheduling and a lot more of the criticism would be dissipated if nationally-known figures were presented to the student body.

### A SUCCESS

Congratulations go to the Campus Center Board for finally demonstrating that medium-sized name entertainment can pay off, with a lot of hard work and determination.

Not only did the Board break even and return to the Student Council all the money spent on the concert given by the Magnificent Men but they threw in a profit of over one hundred and twenty dollars.

Hopefully this very good start will pave the way for a successful concert next fall when the Lettermen come for Homecoming.

Maybe we are finally on our way!

### SOUND OFF

Last Sunday was the first Sound Off held by Student Council. The purpose of the session was to give students the opportunity to voice any complaints, gripes or suggestions about Albright. The meeting was held in the formal lounge after dinner so that students could attend without having to go to too much trouble.

After much publicity and effort on the part of Council, about fifty students showed up. While this is not an impressive figure, it does represent more student interest in Council and in constructive criticism of the college than we have seen for a long time. The students who participated deserve credit for bringing up many valid points and ideas which Council can use as a starting point in its drive to improve some things at the College.

The students who did not attend, especially those who complain about the things they do not like, should feel slightly ashamed of themselves. It does not take much for someone to complain about conditions they do not like, but when it comes time to attend a meeting and give up some valuable time, the men are separated from the boys. *The Albrightian* takes pride in the men at Albright, we wish the boys would grow up.

### CENTER BY-LAWS

(Continued from Page One)

#### Article VII. GENERAL PROVISIONS

##### Section 1.

The Campus Center Board shall be responsible for promoting, scheduling, and coordinating the use of the Campus Center.

##### Section 2.

The Campus Center Board and Director shall establish the policies for the use of the non-public areas of the Campus Center.

##### Section 3.

In scheduling the use of the public areas of the Campus Center the Campus Center Board shall observe the principle that at least one of the public areas of the Campus Center shall be available for general campus use at all times.

##### Section 4.

In scheduling the use of the Campus Center, priority shall be given to student use of the facilities.

##### Section 5.

In scheduling the use of the Theater Area of the Campus Center, priority shall be given to official campus theatrical and musical organizations. Beyond the use of the Theater Area by the aforementioned groups, priority shall be given to student use of this area.

##### Section 6.

While the above principles shall be used in scheduling the use of the Campus Center facilities, these facilities may be made available for non-student and off-campus use.

#### Article VIII. BUDGET

The Campus Center Board and Director shall formulate a budget for each semester's program. This budget shall be submitted to Student Council prior to the beginning of the semester for which it is operable. Upon approval of this budget by Student Council, the Council shall place the approved funds in the treasury of the Campus Center. The Campus Center Board and Director may request supplementary funds. Funds appropriated by Council for a semester's programs and unused by the end of that semester



### THE HAPPENING

They came, not with chants of daffodil power or in praise of the new banana high—but quietly—curious of Student Council's invitation to Sound-Off. There were little more than fifty participants at this first Albright "happening", yet it was significant. Significant in a school known for its apathy. The suggestions ran the full range of student opinion, from an open door policy to a recognition of a need for greater spirit of intellectualism on the campus. Not every comment was a criticism. One senior stated that in four years a social revolution had occurred at the school, adding that the time had come for the recognition of Albright as an academic institution, dedicated to learning. To sum up the entire two hour talk-a-thon would be impossible in the space allotted to this column. Yet I feel that in the interests of both the Student Council and the College, note should be made of the most important suggestions made at the meeting.

1. AN EXTENSION OF THE BREAKFAST HOUR.
2. A COMPLETE INVESTIGATION OF THE PLACEMENT SYSTEM (SUCH THAT EXISTS).
3. A FORMAL INVITATION WAS EXTENDED TO FACULTY MEMBERS TO MAKE USE OF THE CAMPUS CENTER, MAKING IT AN INFORMAL MEETING PLACE FOR CONVERSATION AND PINOCHLE.
4. COLORED TELEVISION WITH UHF ATTACHMENTS.
5. OFFICIAL RECOGNITION OF THE RIGHT OF STUDENTS OF LEGAL AGE TO DRINK OFF CAMPUS.
6. ONE RADICAL SUGGESTED THAT HOUSEMOTHERS BE REPLACED WITH MACHINES.

And so the meeting ended "not with a whimper but a bang." Comments were not always logical or consistent, but were never lacking in interest. This show of spirit showed promise in a college which had to depend on the local high schools for success in its attempt at supplying "non" entertainment. This first Sound-Off '67 was important as an indication of the willingness of this student administration to be responsive to the pulse of the campus.

Mickey Mustokoff,  
Vice-President of Student Council.

shall revert to Student Council. Any profit resulting from an event sponsored by the Campus Center Board shall be retained by the Board for use at its discretion in programming and for equipping the Center.

#### Article IX. ADVISORY COMMITTEE

There shall be established a faculty-administration advisory committee for the Campus Center. It shall include the Dean of Students, Dean of Women, Faculty Advisor to Student Council, the Chaplain, the Advisor of the official campus drama and/or music groups, and such other individuals as shall be designated by the above named members of the committee. The President of the College shall appoint and remove, in consultation with the Director of the Center, such other members of the Advisory Committee as he deems necessary.

#### Article X. AMENDMENTS

Amendments to these By-Laws shall be proposed by a two-thirds majority of the Board or Student Council and approved by Student Council, faculty, and the President of the College.

## Letters To The Editor

Dear Sir,

After reading Dr. Gable's recent article concerning the Health Center and the dispensation of contraceptives, I feel that it is time to give credit in lieu of criticism to a deserving staff.

Thank you, Dr. Gable and the Health Center Nurses! There are many different ways that a health clinic can be managed, in a cheerful friendly way that gives the patient who is really ill a lift and makes the hyperchondriac realize there is more to life than a bottle of pills, or, the disinterested approach that is reminiscent of archaic days of medicine and nursing. Perhaps we should up-date it and refer to the scientific machine clinics of today, there the patient walks through, is evaluated symptomatically, classified, treated and dismissed. The entire procedure is free of any empathy or sympathy, it is purely diagnostic and emotionally negative. One only has to see Mrs. Gable's ready smile in order to properly categorize Albright's Health Center.

The true judgment, if any judgment is to be made, is by one who has been in contact with clinics, others are second guessing or performing for the benefit of the nearest willingly turned ear!

Dr. Gable, who aside from his responsibility to 1100 students, has a private practice and the Caum Memorial Home to provide with medical care. Under these circumstances he should most certainly be commended for the excellent job he is doing.

I wonder how many of us would be willing to listen to a complaint of an "ingrown toenail" after being out on house calls most of the day and through the previous night. Yes a night call, that rare phrase that has practically been erased from the criteria of today's specialists. I am certain at this point some of you are thinking, "Well why doesn't he quit?", or, "No one's asking him to do this." True, but if you have the courage ask your own family doctor if he would like to be the college physician in conjunction with his private practice. After you recover from the probable irony of his retort, be grateful that there is someone willing and interested in your welfare.

Another area, while the sounding board is still vibrating, a clarification is frequently necessary in medicine in the area of diagnosis. If a physician sees a patient at various stages of an illness his provisional diagnosis may be altered as the cumulative signs and symptoms form a pattern; however, if the patient sees

one physician at the onset of illness, another in the early stages, a third at the peak of the illness it is very possible and highly probable that none of the men will arrive at the same conclusion. Many illnesses will have an onset of headache, nausea or vomiting. Does this indicate at a glance the verification of a diagnosis of flue, gastro-enteritis, cholecystitis or a future tax exemption?

Things said in anger have a strange way of turning themselves on the speaker rather than the recipient. No one is God, no one professes to be God. Beyond the campus cloister is a jungle of decisions for each one of you to make. Have fun . . . and, oh yes, always make the right one. Isn't that what you're asking someone else to do?

Joyce L. Fowler, R.N.  
Class of '68

Dear Sir:

The editorial of April 14 concerning conditions in the library did not seem very realistic. It seems very strange that a student with access to a library with over 100,000 books "would have a hard time finding one that he needs." So I asked Dr. Raeppl to explain the criticisms that were made and did some checking myself.

Looking through the card catalog under Africa, for example, a subject "found to be lacking in recently written books," I found over one hundred cards of which more than a third were published in the 1960s. Last year, a number of books were selected for purchase by Reverend Marlow on Africa.

That there is no up-to-date fiction is not the library's fault. Fiction is received every year as gifts. While professors may order fiction if they wish, they seldom do.

As to the faculty's being given greater allotments for book purchases, the library's budget is over five percent of the total school budget. This is considered to be a very good share for college libraries. The money for books is divided equally among all departments and the library uses its share to buy the expensive reference books.

Fine money is only sent to the treasurer to be credited to the library's account and then returned to the library.

The complaint that "study space is woefully lacking during examination periods" does not agree with the statistics kept by the library. This January the largest daily number of students using the library was 951. For roughly a fourteen hour day, this averages sixty-eight students an hour. With the 198 chairs available, where are the "overflow crowds?" On an hourly average there are about thirty-four students who use the library every day.

The library does send the 1966 periodicals to be bound this year because students "borrow" these periodicals which may be difficult or expensive to replace. It is also much easier to preserve periodicals which are bound.

Perhaps if so much money did not have to be spent to replace stolen books, there would be more money for new books.

Peter Fasig '68